Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 09-0275 MC



)

HOBACK FENCE, LLC,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION 


We grant the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission’s (“the MHTC”) motion for summary decision.  Hoback Fence, LLC (“Hoback”) violated state law and federal regulations.  
Procedure


The MHTC filed a complaint on February 20, 2009, seeking this Commission’s determination that Hoback violated state law and federal regulations.  Though Hoback received our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail, it did not file an answer to the complaint.  

The MHTC filed a motion for summary decision on June 30, 2009.  We gave Hoback until July 13, 2009, to respond to the motion, but it did not respond. 

Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(5)(A) provides:  
The commission may grant a motion for summary decision if a party establishes facts that entitle any party to a favorable decision and no party genuinely disputes such facts. 
Findings of Fact

1.  Hoback’s terminal is located at 60298 Highway C, High Point, Missouri.   

2.  On November 5, 2007, Hoback used driver Eric Schroer to drive a 2006 Chevy one-ton pickup, gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) 11,400 pounds, and haul a 2006 PJ brand trailer, GVWR 21,000 pounds, carrying a 953 Cat Dozer in intrastate commerce from High Point, Missouri, to Russellville, Missouri, for compensation.  

3.  Schroer did not have a valid commercial driver’s license on that date.  

4.  Hoback failed to maintain inquiries into Schroer’s driving record in a driver qualification file, failed to require Schroer to prepare a vehicle inspection report, and failed to have the vehicle periodically inspected.    


5.  On November 14, 2007, Hoback used driver Bob Hoback to drive a 2006 Chevy one-ton pickup, GVWR 12,000 pounds, and haul a 2005 PJ Brand trailer, GVWR 20,000 pounds, carrying a 953 Cat Dozer in intrastate commerce from High Point, Missouri, to Versailles, Missouri, for compensation.  


6.  On that date, Hoback had not implemented a random alcohol and/or controlled substance testing program.  


7.  Bob Hoback had not been medically examined and certified.  


8.  Hoback failed to maintain inquiries into Bob Hoback’s driving record in a driver qualification file, failed to require Bob Hoback to prepare a vehicle inspection report, and failed to have the vehicle periodically inspected.  

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear this complaint.
  The MHTC has the burden of proving its case by “clear and satisfactory evidence.”
  

Count I

The MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 382 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle” and “employer”:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds); or

(2) Has a gross vehicle weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds)[.]
*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

Because the Chevy pickup that Bob Hoback drove and the 2005 PJ Brand trailer had a gross combination weight rating (“GCWR”) of more than 26,000 pounds and the towed unit had a GVWR of more than 10,000 pounds, the combination was a commercial motor vehicle.  
Because Bob Hoback was self employed and the company also had at least one employee (Schroer), Hoback was an employer as defined in the regulation.


The MHTC asks us to find a violation of 49 CFR § 382.305:

(a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section.  Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.

On November 14, 2007, Hoback used driver Bob Hoback to drive the commercial motor vehicle in intrastate commerce from High Point, Missouri, to Versailles, Missouri, and transport property, before Hoback implemented a random alcohol and/or controlled substance testing program.  Hoback violated 49 CFR § 382.305(a).  

Count II


The MHTC asserts that Hoback violated 49 CFR § 383.23(a) and 49 CFR § 391.11 on November 5, 2007, and that this violation constitutes a violation of § 307.400.1. 
Section 307.400.1 provides:

It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.
(Emphasis added.)  49 CFR § 390.5 provides:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.
]
The definition of “commercial motor vehicle” in 49 CFR § 390.5 is not same as the definition in 49 CFR § 382.107.  Eric Schroer operated a 2006 Chevy one-ton pickup, GVWR 11,400 pounds, hauling a 2006 PJ brand trailer, GVWR 21,000 pounds, to transport property.  Because the pickup and the trailer each had a GVWR of 10,001 pounds or more, they are commercial motor vehicles under the definition in 49 CFR § 390.5.  

49 CFR § 383.23(a) provides: 

General rule.  Effective April 1, 1992, no person shall operate a commercial motor vehicle unless such person has taken and passed written and driving tests which meet the Federal standards contained in Subparts F, G and H of this part for the commercial motor vehicle that person operates or expects to operate. 

49 CFR § 391.11 provides: 

(a) A person shall not drive a commercial motor vehicle unless he/she is qualified to drive a commercial motor vehicle.  Except as provided in § 391.63, a motor carrier shall not require or permit a person to drive a commercial motor vehicle unless that person is qualified to drive a commercial motor vehicle.

(B) Except as provided in subpart (G) of this part, a person is qualified to drive a motor vehicle if he/she—

(5) Has a currently valid commercial motor vehicle operator’s license issued only by one State or jurisdiction.  

Because Hoback’s employee did not have a valid commercial driver’s license, he violated 
49 CFR § 383.23(a) and 49 CFR § 391.11.  Because Hoback’s employee violated these regulations, we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397 and that Hoback’s employee violated § 307.400.
Count III 


49 CFR § 391.45 provides:    

. . . the following persons must be medically examined and certified in accordance with § 391.43 as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle:

(a) Any person who has not been medically examined and certified as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle;

(b)(1) Any driver who has not been medically examined and certified as qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle during the preceding 24 months; or

*   *   *

(c) Any driver whose ability to perform his/her normal duties has been impaired by a physical or mental injury or disease.

49 CFR § 390.5 provides:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.
]
Bob Hoback operated a 2006 Chevy one-ton pickup, GVWR 12,000 pounds, hauling a 2005 PJ brand trailer, GVWR 20,000 pounds, to transport property.  Because the pickup and the trailer each had a GVWR of 10,001 pounds or more, they are commercial motor vehicles under the definition in 49 CFR § 390.5.  

On November 14, 2007, Hoback allowed Bob Hoback to drive a commercial motor vehicle when he had not been medically examined and certified.  Hoback thus violated 49 CFR § 391.45(a).  Because Hoback violated 49 CFR § 391.45(a), we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397 and that Hoback violated § 307.400.1.

Count IV

Regulation 49 CFR § 391.51 provides:

(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:

*   *   *

(2) A copy of the response by each State agency concerning a driver’s driving record pursuant to § 391.23(a)(1)[.]

We have already established that Bob Hoback and Eric Schroer drove commercial motor vehicles, as defined in 49 CFR § 390.5, on November 5 and November 14, 2007, respectively.  On those dates, Hoback allowed Bob Hoback and Eric Schroer to operate a commercial motor vehicle while Hoback failed to maintain responses to inquiries concerning their driving records in their driver qualification files.  Therefore, Hoback violated 49 CSR § 391.51(b)(2).  Because the vehicle was not operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Hoback violated § 307.400.1.

Count V


49 CFR § 396.11 provides:

(a) Report required. Every motor carrier shall require its drivers to report, and every driver shall prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day's work on each vehicle operated and the report shall cover at least the following parts and accessories:

--Service brakes including trailer brake connections

--Parking (hand) brake

--Steering mechanism

--Lighting devices and reflectors

--Tires

--Horn

--Windshield wipers

--Rear vision mirrors

--Coupling devices

--Wheels and rims

--Emergency equipment

(Emphasis added.)  49 CFR § 390.5 defines a “motor carrier” as “a for-hire motor carrier or a private motor carrier” and defines a “for-hire motor carrier” as “a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.”  On November 5 and 14, 2007, Hoback’s drivers failed to prepare vehicle inspection reports.  Hoback violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a).  Because the vehicle was not operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Hoback violated 
§ 307.400.1.
Count VI


Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17 provides:

(a) Every commercial motor vehicle shall be inspected as required by this section. . . .

*   *   *
(c) A motor carrier shall not use a commercial motor vehicle unless each component identified in appendix G has passed an inspection in accordance with the terms of this section at least once during the preceding 12 months and documentation of such inspection is on the vehicle. . . .

On November 5 and 14, 2007, Hoback used commercial motor vehicles that had not been periodically inspected.  Therefore, Hoback violated 49 CFR § 396.17(c).  Because the vehicle was not operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Hoback violated § 307.400.1.
Summary


Hoback violated state law and federal regulations.  We cancel the hearing.  

SO ORDERED on August 4, 2009.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP  



Commissioner

	�Section 621.040; § 622.320, RSMo 2000.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2008 unless otherwise noted.


	�Section 622.350.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.


	�Recent amendments to this regulation do not affect this definition.


	�Recent amendments to this regulation do not affect this definition.
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